TOWN OF EAST KINGSTON, NH
SELECTMEN’S PUBLIC MEETING MINUTES
MONDAY, DECEMBER 12, 2011

6:30PM — South Hampton Board of Selectmen
7:00PM — 2012 Proposed Budget-Reid Simpson, PBleggartment

ATTENDING: Selectmen Matthew B. Dworman, Richard S. Poel&kKark A. Cook.

Others Attending: Ronald Preston, Pamela Noong@xeWilliams, South Hampton Board of
Selectmen, Dave Considine, South Hampton Depugy@rief, Earl Day, John Gamble, Carole
McCarthy, Ed Warren Fire Chief, Matt Gallant, DepEtre Chief, Reid Simpson, Police Chief.

Chairman Dworman called this Selectmen’s Public tWwgeto order at 6:30PM.

SOUTH HAMPTON: Chairman Dworman welcomed the South Hampton Bo&&klectmen, et al, to
this evening’s meeting. He explained they wismtave forward with the discussion of the possibidity
providing Fire & EMS services to the Town of Sotthmpton. He added this past year was an
experimental year of providing fire and ambulanoeerage to South Hampton, and they are confident
East Kingston can handle their calls and providergroved level of service to South Hampton
residents.

Chairman Dworman stated he was looking to seeuttsblampton had an interest in receiving 100% Fire
and Ambulance service from East Kingston.

Mr. Preston replied whatever talk transpires thisneng will have to put before the voters of South
Hampton in a series of meetings including Town Megtbefore final decisions are made. He added he
is certain the Selectmen of East Kingston areénstime boat, and this is a very big deal in tlognt

Mr. Preston offered for heavy-duty fire calls, tHegve mutual aid in Amesbury. He added he knows
East Kingston has newer equipment, a nice ambulamcka greater volume of calls, but this is aalift
conversation, as their Fire Department has fouddfitult to maintain services in this difficulcenomy.
He added volunteers are too busy making a livinigngbtime to volunteer, and most of their folkg ar
from Amesbury.

Mr. Preston stated South Hampton has an issueagitipment and maintaining their equipment, so it
makes a certain amount of sense to talk about it.

Chairman Dworman stated fire trucks cost betwed®E®0 and $400,000, have a certain limited
lifespan, East Kingston retires their fire truckishwow mileage, and it is tough to retire a trweith only
6,000 miles on it. He added the level of standévdgolice and fire training and certificationedreing
raised more and more.

Mr. Preston stated it is not practical to merge fiepartments as the process is cumbersome, aedshe
too much legality. He added they want to proceetthé structure they have talked about, and thdy wi
have to talk to the state and counsel to see hesetthings get set-up.

Mr. Preston stated they would have to talk to thresurance company and their Fire Association.

Town of East Kingston, NH Selectmen’s Public Meetig Minutes December 12, 2011-20111212selpubmin 1



Mr. Preston stated they are seeking a long-termemgent, possibly 10+ years. He added the voters
would expect a long-term arrangement.

Chairman Dworman responded both towns would haegtee on a multi-year contract, and if they reach
an agreement for a single-year contract, it wowidhave to go to Town Meeting.

Mr. Poelaert offered South Hampton would almostehiavretain their equipment in the short term,
because once you get rid of it you're out of thengaompletely from the perspective of mutual aid.

Mr. Preston responded that's why they look forraglberm agreement, and from his understanding of
mutual aid, we’re essentially in your fire prevemtidistrict, and you would have to provide mutudl a

Mr. Preston stated he thinks it is very likely teatme of South Hampton’s volunteer firemen may want
come to work in East Kingston. He added they dkindw for sure, but we may end-up kind of merging
in a certain way anyway. Mr. Cook responded theyweelcome to apply for employment, and would
have to go through the application process anddrackd checks to be considered on a case-by-case
basis. Mr. Preston agreed they would not wamytaher way.

Mr. Cook inquired as to how set the Selectmen ara potential vote in March, and Mr. Preston
responded they still have a Fire Department, aiicheed ambulance service. He added they have
something to offer, and requested his Deputy Fhieelpeak to the Board.

Chairman Dworman stated he looks at the past twalweths of providing service to the Town of South
Hampton as a successful experiment, as the Eagstin Fire Department has responded to every single
South Hampton call, while providing a high qualifyservice. He added they are looking to takente
steps and it makes sense to increase East Kingstat'volume to reduce our overall cost per ait

by the time you bill-out for insurance, you are lo®ing money on every single call.

Chairman Dworman stated the “magic number” is 200-&alls, where we used to have 100 calls. He
added taking on more calls provides more trainimdj @xpertise to both towns.

Ms. Noon offered it was her understanding from Sdd&mpton Fire Chief, Andy Head, that East
Kingston provided coverage for 25 fire calls, pdusumber of ambulance calls, and of those, 16 were
transports. She added their ambulance is thereamte used.

Mr. Considine stated South Hampton’s ambulanceiwéesst month for service, and is still stallingyt
should be fixed by year-end.

Mr. Preston stated they would like to try to reackerbal agreement with East Kingston, draft atet
the residents of South Hampton, and let the peapige in and talk. He recommended the two Fire
Chiefs get together and talk, and then they wik &bout money eventually.

Mr. Cook stated they were thinking of providingd-goverage for South Hampton for $35,000 a year,
and Ambulance service for $10,000 per year pluthalbillings for transports performed by the East
Kingston Fire Department. He added the goal leeep South Hampton’s costs less than their current
budget, so they would realize a savings by doiigy thut for us, every time you raise the door drelfire
engine goes out, it still costs a certain amoumhohey to do that.

Town of East Kingston, NH Selectmen’s Public Meetig Minutes December 12, 2011-20111212selpubmin 2



Mr. Cook stated the increased call volume doesaedur costs per call a little bit, but we stillvao
make sure the costs get covered on our end. Hedagld do not want to create a scenario where yau fe
like we are taking advantage of you.

Mr. Cook offered it is his understanding South He&mnpcurrently budgets $67,000, so in the first year
they could potentially save $15,000 or so.

Mr. Poelaert stated the beauty of this is we cgetttoo greedy, and you guys have to come-up \oities
sort of a deal, too, because if we get too gregolyr people will not pass it, and if we feel likewe
getting robbed, it won’t pass here, so we havedetrm the middle.

Mr. Williams stated he has a little bit of a baakgnd in this, and the bad news is he is a lawyet the
good news is he also has a family full of firemamngd he takes this issue very, very seriously. dtked
his dad retired as a Chief of the Boston Fire Dmpant, and his grandfather was in the Fire Departme
and he thinks Mr. Poelaert hit the nail on the hélaely need to determine how both towns can erthere
safety of their residents, they get the responstethg time, get whatever they need. He said jeitst all
on the table, those are South Hampton'’s piecdsenf puzzle, and East Kingston adds their piecekeof
puzzles on the table, mix up the pieces a litdedrid see how do these fit together in a way ltdresm

to both towns, and it makes sense for you andgorAt the end of the day it makes sense, then our
people get to vote.

Mr. Cook responded he doesn’t see how we can w$aras our standpoint with more activity for the
people we have so they are going to have more elanause their skills, get better skills, and iovgy, it
will be income to offset our current budget, wgdt the ambulance revenue to offset future ambalanc
expenses and medical needs, and that sort of thing.

Chairman Dworman explained that East Kingston folyrtead a full-time Fire Chief, but have now
eliminated the full-time position, and gone to atfieme Fire Chief with daytime fire station covge

Mr. Cook added they operate with two 6-hour ovesiag shifts between seven in the morning and three
in the afternoon.

Chairman Dworman stated for many reasons, the ehsimguld be systematic, and it would be tough to
jump into a long-term agreement without tryingut.o Mr. Williams responded this couldn’t be acladv
in 5-6 weeks. Ms. Noon added if the voters apptbigin March, it would take time.

Mr. Poelaert stated they need time to promotetihéovoters from the Fire Departments and the
Selectmen’s Office from both towns that this isoad deal that will work for everybody. He asked if
South Hampton is an SB-2 town, and Ms. Noon respdi@buth Hampton has a Town Meeting. Mr.
Poelaert stated East Kingston is an SB-2 town tla@dy in the ointment is 125 people will comethe
Deliberative Session and they will hear the arguraed will hear the discussion between the peoble.
added 400 people are not going to go, but theyowithe to the election, so we have our work cutfout
us, and in the battle of the Town Meeting that wedito have, you can settle it right then and thmre
we have no control over those 400 people that wanrite, and it's just crazy for us to put all thisriv
together and not cover our bases.

Mr. Williams agreed East Kingston needs a transifieriod where there’s a strategic team that Hadpls
sides, and both Fire Departments to formalize the.p

Town of East Kingston, NH Selectmen’s Public Meetig Minutes December 12, 2011-20111212selpubmin 3



Mr. Cook agreed something has to be formalized,staiedd he is not in favor of continuing the exigti
agreement any longer than necessary, because midusimutual aid, and with us covering the day to
day fire calls, it has gone above and beyond muigbhgreements, because mutual aid is intended for
when your resources are unable to handle the dwsitelations, it is not based on covering your ttay
day calls, that you can’t make. Mr. Preston respdmbviously we need a formal agreement, a tiansit
year, talk about putting it before the town, thalk to lawyers. He added they would need to talk t
people that really know how to project costs.

Mr. Poelaert stating we are talking about capitplipment, heat, lights, power, workers’ compensatio
everything, then asked if it would be acceptabledmmission a study for approximately $3,000 to see
the costs of doing business so we can come-upamitxact figure and not pick a number out of the sk
He added we will put everything in the right ordecounting-wise, and go from there and share the de
with you, we are partners actually, we have toeliae debt and say here is our baseline. He atided
first thing people are going to ask at the DelibeeaSession is what is the cost going to be, &meisay
we don’t know, we're done. He asked if East Kingstommissions the study and comes up with a
number, would it be fair to suppose that you gugsi go for half of the cost? Mr. Preston respahde
they would certainly propose it to their town asytldo not have the latitude, because they runoat to
small a margin to obligate money between now anarbleeting, but in principal, you bet. Mr.
Poelaert stated they could remind their voters Haat Kingston, from December of last year to
December of this year, has provided coverage tohSdampton at no charge.

Mr. Williams responded if we know what the moneyoamt is, that's fine. He added in a different
situation, when we’re already working together, yould properly do it pro-rata based on the nunadber
crew you have vs. the amount of crew we haveinktiiou’re right in terms of trying to bring twowms
together in a way that services you and serviced tlink we would take that seriously and propthss
as something as an expense that would be worb e agree in principle, we just need to know the
logistics.

Mr. Cook stated, with asking the voters pushedtmeitemotest discussion until March of next year
anyway, and that is the very beginning piece of Whole agreement is what's this going to costMs.
Poelaert added we’ve gone one year basically anddihake, could we go the next year with a semi-
formal agreement that we’re going to continue floe onore year to reach an interim agreement?

Mr. Williams stated you have some members and we Bame members, and we’ll have to mull this a
little bit, in terms of paying for the study is otieng, and that probably makes sense to do sg/lkevdy
walks away with a smile on their face, but in teiwhfiow do we take care of the interim period,ihkh
you're right, we need to have some type of undedsiay that we know it's going to take both of our
towns perspectives a certain amount of time to fafint study. | don’t know how it is going tompa
out. Do we have a representative from South Hamas sort of your liaison to our town with fire
experience, however it works out, and figure ofihancial mechanism that allows you to continue to
help us, allows us to keep our volunteer fire depant staffed and trained until we figure out witnet
right composition is. Mr. Cook responded if thevts votes to do this, you still have to wait a yead
even if we can get your town something on yourdtal March of 2012, it's March of 2013 before we
can even start. Mr. Williams stated that is exadght, and the good news is a year gives thertiraé
to plan.

Mr. Gamble quoted RSA 154-1, and said he had atbahothers from the Fire Marshal’s office, and Ms.
McCarthy added Selectmen are not supposed to gdang-term contracts. Mr. Preston responded we
are not suggesting that.

Town of East Kingston, NH Selectmen’s Public Meetig Minutes December 12, 2011-20111212selpubmin 4



Ms. McCarthy stated if you want to merge, you nasdt both towns at Town Meeting if they desire to
merge, then you have to go and get the Attorneye@é#s OK, then go back to Town Meeting. Mr.
Cook responded yes, for an inter-municipal agree¢nae we're not talking about that. For a corttrac
basis, you do not need to do all that. Ms. McGaréiterated you have to go through the Attorney
General.

Mr. Preston informed Ms. McCarthy he did not seeghint in having a big legal discussion now,
obviously we’re all going to have to go talk to thevyers and make sure we are doing this correctly.

Mr. Williams stated there is good news and thetai$ news. The good news is the year you arentalki
about gives us time to plan it out, have the rightsultation, and get things done right, crosst'syuetc.

Mr. Cook asked, in the meantime, what are you gtondp for ambulance service, and Mr. Williams
responded they have a couple of choices, theyleays go back to using AMR Ambulance Service, we
can work something out with you, and we would b&evork it out with you if that's what's been

working this year, and our guys tell us it's beeorking, they why wouldn’t we do that again?

Mr. Poelaert stated that he thinks one of the thing should look at here is this situation thatdrésen,
that could have been us looking to you, so we wahelp, and from what | see, you are not going to
make it with your ambulance for another year, sdhese to figure out how do we cover for the next
year? Mr. Williams responded, that, | think we cian

Mr. Poelaert continued, and then you have to gaadtif we were dissolving the East Kingston Fire
Department and letting you take over, we would reaweyriad of problems, because we have had a
volunteer fire department in this Town for 65 toy&ars, probably even longer, it would be hellasjou
and | do not envy you in what you are doing, butefcan get to where we want to go, we want to.help

Chairman Dworman stated until around 2005, Easgtion had a $15,000 contract for ambulance
service with AMR, paid for supplemental serviceq dmere were times AMR did not show-up. He added,
at the time, they were prepared to offer the ToWwKingston more than we were paying AMR for a
higher level of service. Mr. Williams agreed thats consistent with what South Hampton had, about
$16,000 a year, and they just decided they had &ochething different, so we would much rather find
way that really works out to train people at thealdevel of what’s going on, that you have to have
back-up, you have to have mutual aid, and the fatiod for the mutual aid is both towns would ne®d t
have to support that.

Chairman Dworman stated it is a major change aey definitely want to put it before the voters, but
providing a service of an ambulance, whereas kmting have contracted ambulance service through a
third party provider, he does not think it woulddenajor change for either of us, and he thinksoitld

be a easy way to start for either town.

Mr. Poelaert stated we could put in our warraritkrpretty simply, we would like to enter into
discussion with South Hampton over the mergingrefdepartments, whatever the wording is, it can be
that simple, and if we carry the vote, then we wemch on. Mr. Williams responded there could be
something specific to ambulance service, and mkshivhat they would have to do even though they
have an ambulance that’s close to being dead iw#ter, we obviously need ambulance service, so we
either go to a third party provider or we work witte town we’re anticipating we might want to work
with going down the road. He added he does nowkmbat the budget numbers are, but we knew we

Town of East Kingston, NH Selectmen’s Public Meetig Minutes December 12, 2011-20111212selpubmin 5



were, pardon the pun, getting hosed by AMR, whey there our ambulance service and we had the
backing of their former chief, and the fire depaetiy they would get these guys trained, and it made
sense at the time, but it doesn’t make sense negguse it is hard to maintain our ambulance. Glreair
Dworman agreed, sure, it is a hundred thousanddgoikce of equipment to replace, especially if you
only have 20 calls a year, it is absurd.

Mr. Cook suggested getting both Fire Chiefs’ pahtiew and moving on, and Mr. Williams agreed.
Mr. Cook added he didn’t want to continue using @sources without a formal agreement.

Chief Warren stated he doesn't think we shouldegjtand East Kingston has been more than happy to
help out South Hampton, that every town goes thi@aaynething like this at some point, and we allehav
to help each other. The original proposal he cameith was not to do away with the South Hampton
Fire Department, as it would need a Chief for im§ipas and reports, as a figurehead, call it wioat y
will. He added he spoke to LGC (Local Governmeant€r) and the Town'’s attorney, and the
recommendation was for the first year, they coded @ Memorandum of Understanding (MOU), and it
doesn’t have to go to a town vote, it gives you fhat year to work out the bugs and see if jasng to
work. He added the original numbers he came ulp wére | admit conservative on both sides but he
didn’t know how it was going to work out and he wexhthat first year for everybody to feel theirgato
to speak, so he came up with $35,000 for the y&sr of fire coverage and $10,000 for the firstryefa
ambulance service plus the transports. Now to agmeith an MOU to buy us that first year or yeada
half, you could take those numbers and switch taesand, or just take the ambulance side of it and d
an MOU. He added he just does not feel theraniayaof getting anything done officially for thisming
March, he just doesn’t feel it’s realistic, but kvéin MOU, it will buy you the time you need.

Mr. Williams stated he wanted to get straight, with MOU for a transition period, which he thinke w
can both legally do as towns, to determine the arthoumoney to continue what you have been doimng fo
us right along, so our budget minus whatever weeaty do with you but in the meantime keep the ISout
Hampton Volunteer Fire Department in town as arpead during the transition period. He askelaf t
was what Chief Warren was suggesting as what wgmally anticipated?

Chief Warren agreed that was exactly what he h#dipated, and he does not want anybody to try to
force one town or another to dissolve anything.added he is very confident in the skills of hisane
how they handle themselves and what they do, henda&ink there is a question in their skills or
training, and he wants to earn the trust of thepfgeof South Hampton, and he believes they haveedar
that trust with the people of East Kingston, bute@we know where our stand is. He added he hasrkno
John forever, it is not a question of ability, heks it is a question of not forcing anything down
anybody’s throat.

Mr. Cook stated it would be an easy presentatidhégeople, on our fire department (South Hampton)
it is tough to get people and tough to retain peophd the East Kingston Fire Department cover84l00

of its calls unless there is an ambulance calloats Hampton and there is a big fire in East Kingst

and that is where mutual aid would kick in, andnirwhat Chief Warren has told us this year thatyeve
time East Kingston has been called somewhere 1pt ive’ve responded and pulled through and covered
everything. He thinks it would be an easy predentdo the townspeople.

Mr. Williams stated they need to present, herehatwve spend now, and here are the new costs to the

voters. Chief Warren added, in the meantime, $bdh an MOU of your existing $67,000 budget
provides a higher level of service on an interirsiba

Town of East Kingston, NH Selectmen’s Public Meetig Minutes December 12, 2011-20111212selpubmin 6



Mr. Poelaert stated that East Kingston has to ragirheir equipment and provide station coverage
Monday through Friday between 8:00AM — 4:00PM, dridhs to be a win-win for both towns.

Mr. Williams stated that we are obviously next-daerghbors, and we have fire equipment and fire
departments, and asked if there were a future lpibgsof using their station as a satellite statio East
Kingston, does that sort of concept make sense@f @rarren stated it is not part of their plan ament,
but it could possibly happen 10 or 20 years dovenrtfad, and added he does not see the necessity for

Mr. Williams asked if it would be needed for respertime, and Chief Warren responded no, he does not
think so.

Mr. Poelaert stated all East Kingston’s equipmsrihione station, and Chief Warren added it woaléb
logistical nightmare, one station is enough.

Mr. Gamble stated a study was done two years tlgggested getting rid of South Hampton’s ambulance
service and having their own small Fire Departnveiit 10 or 12 guys, and at least we could pay them
decently, train them decently, and have a decaoktrand that’s the way | feel about it. You ghgse
done an awesome job and | think we should try tdrest our ambulance and see how this works out for
the first year or two. He added there are goinigetdig changes coming as of the first of the yibar,
town’s really up in arms and there are going tet@e big changes. We hope that the changes will be
better for the town.

Mr. Williams responded he agrees with John andasekinow John for years and years, and he doesn’t
think the town is up in arms, he thinks what thie iepartment has built and what we have contiasd
been awesome, but we have something that is OKaenttying to make OK better. You built it Jolsn,
let’s look for a way to make things better, andntfiad out how to make it work, and this was thetfi
step tonight.

Mr. Poelaert stated one thing that he thinks isartgnt is having the Fire Chief deal with the Firiief,
and the six Selectmen should deal with the polipeat of it. He added this can be done, we cad &
solution.

Mr. Preston asked what the next steps are, an€bbk responded East Kingston would be willing to
offer this service with an MOU, | think we just ke come up with what it's going to cost.

Mr. Poelaert reiterated they need to commissiaiidysand inform the townspeople at Town Meeting
what our intentions are for a one-year period.sT$ithe direction we think we’d like to go in, awé
want your permission to start the journey.

Mr. Preston asked if the study was needed for ayeae transition, and Mr. Poelaert responded, vithen
taxpayers ask the question of cost, he thinksithgortant to answer that question.

Chairman Dworman stated they went over every dimierackel in the budget, and divided by the
number of calls and the cost of heat and utilities.

Mr. Poelaert opined with added calls, the life estpecy of the equipment may be less, and Mr. Cook
responded he did not know about that as the tracksnade to run, and sitting in the station kHism
worse than anything. Chief Warren said he wouildktthe first step is the MOU, and that buys yoe th
time to explain to the residents you are goingddhds cost study, and find out what we think tivat

Town of East Kingston, NH Selectmen’s Public Meetig Minutes December 12, 2011-20111212selpubmin 7



already know. Dick is absolutely right, we haveoat study and explain that to the residents, werar
the process of seeing what x, y and z costs usyagoing to make sure we are getting the fairadoll
and make sure we are not paying too much, andajoniduy.

Ms. Noon inquired if East Kingston is interestedust the ambulance service, and not the fire servi
and Mr. Poelaert responded the problem is by muatidehgreement, we are responding to everything
anyway, and being taken advantage of a littleant East Kingston would want both ambulance ard fir
service. Chairman Dworman agreed, with the cdlime, we must have both.

Mr. Preston stated they must make this informatiear in their town.

Mr. Cook asked if they would be comfortable witheging into an MOU if they decide that’'s what they
are going to do for the next year, and Mr. Presésponded that the three of them are, but theydvoul
need to get a response from their town. Mr. Willssagreed they would have to present the informatio
to the townspeople.

Mr. Poelaert inquired, with the two upcoming holidawhat would be their timeframe to get back to us
and Mr. Gamble asked if they could enter into s&md of ambulance agreement at least until Town
Meeting and get a vote at Town Meeting, he knoisgjibing to be a year, but we need the ambulance
right away. Mr. Williams added is what he thinkdd is asking is, are we in a status quo modegif w
give you a representation where we tell you whetinerot we are willing to pull the trigger to mothe
next steps forward by the middle of January, ateguys comfortable with whatever the status quo is?

Mr. Poelaert responded East Kingston’s budget hgaill be held on January f1and they can’t wait
until the 18", it is a real compressed period of time here,aodld want permission to start the journey
by then. Mr. Williams asked when would we needgaswer, and Chairman Dworman responded the
Fire Department budget has been proposed and adceid we are just going to present it, so with ou
current budget with the fire department, we are &blprovide ambulance service for the next yéur, t
only difference to us would be the revenue side.

Mr. Williams stated so if we do, you have your niegiand we have ours, they are both approved and
actually mesh, then we have to find the steps torgthis sojourn and he doesn’t know if it wouldame

special town meeting to say OK we’ve allocated thidget for the fire department, but we’re going to

take this portion of it for this year. | don’t kwavhat we have to do, but we will figure it out.

Chairman Dworman responded, he thinks as longiasiithin your budget and we can come to an
agreement, it will be fine, and Mr. Williams agrdeglis probably right.

Mr. Poelaert offered he hadn’t thought of it, buaybe both towns can do special town meetings in the
mid-summer, and Chairman Dworman responded spegial meetings cost $5,000.

Mr. Gamble offered maybe we could come to a morslgikeement for the ambulance or something.
Mr. Gallant stated he is the Deputy Fire Chief abEKingston, and his question to South Hampton is,
with talk of their Fire Chief stepping down as oéd@mber 31, 2011, what plans do they have to replac

him? Mr. Williams assured Mr. Gallant they do havelan in place, and they have a commitment to
move forward.

Town of East Kingston, NH Selectmen’s Public Meetig Minutes December 12, 2011-20111212selpubmin 8



Mr. Williams stated he would like finish out foremext 15 days or so under the existing arrangement
until we get to the point of an MOU, and Mr. Co@sponded as long as 15 days doesn’t creep into four
months.

Chief Warren responded as long as there is a gotiddffort, we're here. Mr. Poelaert added, “alds
a deal when it's a deal.”

Mr. Poelaert thanked everyone in attendance fottimgeevith them this evening, and Ronald Preston,
Pamela Noon, Gregory Williams, South Hampton Badr8electmen, Dave Considine, South Hampton
Deputy Fire Chief, Earl Day, John Gamble, CaroleCdithy, Ed Warren Fire Chief, and Matt Gallant,
Deputy Fire Chief left the meeting at 7:30PM.

NONPUBLIC SESSION: Chairman DwormaMOTIONED to go into a nonpublic session at 8:10PM
under RSA 91-A-3, II: para (a) The dismissal, prtimmoor compensation of any public employee or the
disciplining of such employee, or the investigatadrany charges against him, unless the employee
affected (1) has a right to a meeting and (2) retpunat the meeting be open, in which case theestq
shall be granted. The Board was polled and thdtsestithe poll were: Matthew B. Dworman —Yes,
Richard S. Poelaert — Yes, & Mark A. Cook —Yes.

The Board was polled & determined the divulgencthefinformation would render the proposed action
ineffective & the information will be withheld froitine public during the public meeting Minutes of
December 12, 2011. The results of the poll werettiMsy B. Dworman —Yes, Richard S. Poelaert — Yes,
& Mark A. Cook —Yes.

Chairman DwormamMOTIONED to adjourn this Selectmen’s non-public meetin§:80PM. Mr.
Poelaert seconded. Motion carried 3-0.

MINUTES: The Board reviewed the Selectmen’s Public Meetilrgutes dated 11/28/11. Mr.
PoelaerMOTIONED to approve the Selectmen’s Public Meeting Minateted 11/28/11 as presented.
Mr. Cook seconded. Motion carried 3-0.

REGISTER/POLICE DETAIL: The Board reviewed the check register dated 111302/09/11, in the
amount of $753,448.01, and the police special diéttin the amount of $1,320.00, dated 11/28/11-
11/30/11.

It was noted that Mr. Poelaert reviewed the accopayable prior to its approval at this meeting.

Chairman DwormamMOTIONED to approve and sign the check register as preddndsed on Mr.
Poelaert’s prior review. Mr. Poelaert seconded.idotarried 3-0.

Mr. PoelaertMOTIONED to approve and sign the police special detaillsspresented. Mr. Cook
seconded. Motion carried 3-0.

ENERGY EFFICIENCY & CONSERVATION BLOCK GRANT:  The Board reviewed Agreement
Form #7, Request for Payment #2 in regard to trexd@dnEfficiency & Conservation Block Grant for the
total amount of $30,000 for the project completetha East Kingston Elementary School, 5 Andrews
Lane, East Kingston, NH.

Town of East Kingston, NH Selectmen’s Public Meetig Minutes December 12, 2011-20111212selpubmin 9



Following discussion, Mr. CookIOTIONED for the Chairman to approve and sign the Agreement
Form #7, Request for Payment #2 for the projectatetad at the East Kingston Elementary School as
stated above. Mr. Poelaert seconded. MotionexhB10.

2012 APPOINTMENTS: The Board reviewed the January 1 — December(®I2 appointments as
recommended. (See attached list). Chairman Dwoi@mIONED to approve and sign the
appointments as presented. Mr. Poelaert secondatibrvcarried 3-0.

T/C REQUEST FOR DISBURSEMENT OF FUNDS: The Board reviewed the following Request for
Disbursement of Funds for overpayment of taxeshfersecond billing for 2011:

Michael Robinson, MBL #02-06-08, 13 Casey Rd., $2.0

Chairman DwormamMOTIONED to sign the Request for Disbursement of Fundsaasdsabove for the
total amount of $2. Mr. Cook seconded. Motiorriear3-0.

EQUALIZATION REPORT: The Board reviewed the 2011 Equalization Munichssessment Data
Sheets Certificate and report for signature.

It was noted the 2011 equalization process wasdbasé¢he qualified sales that have occurred in East
Kingston from 10/01/10 to 09/30/11, and the indécatnedian ratio for the Town is 104.1%.

Following discussion, Chairman DwormBIOTIONED to sign the 2011 Equalization Municipal
Assessment Data Sheets Certificate as presentedCddk seconded. Motion carried 3-0.

DRAGON MOSQUITO: The Board reviewed a Special Permit Applicationsiuito/Black Fly to the
NH Division of Pesticide Control for 2012.

It was noted the state application must be subdhétely since the application may take up to 132G da
process.

Following discussion, Mr. PoelagMtOTIONED for the Chairman to sign the Special Permit
Application-Mosquito/Black Fly for 2012. Mr. Coaeconded. Motion carried 3-0.

TOWN REPORT: The Board reviewed a quote from ImageWise for2b&l Town Report. At the
Selectmen’s request, a quote was received foripgiit000 Town Reports for the total amount of $8,76
and another for printing 300 Town Reports for thialtamount of $1,408.

Chairman Dworman requested ImageWise be contagtexfjtiest another quote for 300 copies of the
2011 Town Report printed on 8 1/2 x 11 paper.

NH DEPT. OF SAFETY: The Board acknowledged receipt of corresponddated December 7, 2011
from the State of NH, Department of Safety, Homeél&ecurity and Emergency Management, stating on
December 5, 2011, President Barack Obama declaregja disaster for the State of NH due to a Severe
Storm and Snowstorm event with an incident perio@aober 29-30, 2011, and a major disaster
declaration for Public Assistance including Hillsbegh and Rockingham Counties.

It was noted this correspondence had been forwdolEBdst Kingston’s Emergency Management
Director, Sarah Gallant.

Town of East Kingston, NH Selectmen’s Public Meetig Minutes December 12, 2011-20111212selpubmin 10



CONSERVATION COMMISSION:  The Board acknowledged receipt of Conservatiom@gssion
minutes from their meeting held on October 10, 2fattheir review and information.

INTERNET SERVICE: The Board reviewed estimates for upgraded braatibarvice, as well as
telephone and long distance service received framPBint Communications and Comcast.

Following review, Chairman DwormaOTIONED to award the contract for upgraded broadband
service, as well as telephone and long distancgceeio Comcast. Mr. Poelaert seconded. Motion
carried 3-0.

CUSTODIAN: Ms. Hurteau informed the Board, on behalf of Gklaglej, a new vacuum cleaner is
needed for the Pound School building, and the Bagrded they had advised Mr. Madej at their meeting
with him on November 14, 2011 to let them know ifeav vacuum was needed, and would certainly
approve the purchase of a new vacuum.

PLANNING BOARD: Mr. Cook advised the other Board members he vedek request from David
Sullivan to be appointed to the Planning Board.

Mr. CookMOTIONED to appoint David Sullivan to the Planning Boaifichere being no second to Mr.
Cook’s motion, the motion failed.

AUSTIN CARTER: Mr. Poelaert stated Austin Carter would, oncdrgdze riding around town on the
Fire Engine as Santa Claus this year. Mr. Poetaetéd Mr. Carter has been participating in tiie for
the children of East Kingston for many years nomg auggested purchasing a new watch for him as a
way of saying thank you to him.

Chairman DwormaMOTIONED to approve the purchase of a new watch for Ausérter for his years
of service as Santa Claus for the children of Eaggston. Mr. Cook seconded. Motion carried 3-0.

CALENDAR: The following dates were noted: 12/14-Librarydtees Meeting, 12/15-Bills Due,
Planning Board Meeting, Cemeteries Close, 12/17Me#gting, 12/21-Cemetery Trustee’s Meeting,
12/23-Grange Meeting, Christmas Eve Holiday obseiMewn Offices & Library closed, 12/26-
Chrismas Holiday observed-Town Offices & Librarps#d, 12/27-Selectmen’s Meeting.

Mr. PoelaertMOTIONED to adjourn this Selectmen’s Public Meeting at 8/5MMr. Cook seconded.
Motion carried 3-0.

Respectfully submitted,

Cheryll A. Hurteau
Town Office Manager

Matthew B. Dworman Ract S. Poelaert Mark Aoko
Town of East Kingston, NH Selectmen’s Public Meetig Minutes December 12, 2011-20111212selpubmin 11



Town of East Kingston, NH Selectmen’s Public Meetig Minutes December 12, 2011-20111212selpubmin 12



